
Gloucestershire Schools Forum

Thursday 10 January 2019 at 2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester



    



    

Gloucestershire Schools Forum
Thursday 10 January 2019

2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Joanne Bolton

2  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To receive any public questions.  Questions can be asked on the day or 
sent to the Clerk before the meeting.  A written answer will be provided if 
questions are received 3 clear working days before the date of the 
meeting.  The Chair will advise timescale for any questions asked on the 
day of the meeting or received less than 3 working days before the 
meeting.

Joanne Bolton

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2018 and note 
actions.

Joanne Bolton

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Forum must declare an interest in any agenda item where 
the outcome may give them a direct pecuniary advantage or avoid a 
disadvantage.  A form is available at the back of the meeting room.

Joanne Bolton

5  ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

To elect a Vice-Chair with a term of office of two years.

Chair

6  GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL BUDGET CONSULTATION 
2019 (Pages 11 - 14)

Suzanne Hall

7  DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT 2019/20 (Pages 15 - 28) Neil Egles, 
Stewart King

8  SCHOOLS FORUM WORKPLAN 2019 (Pages 29 - 32) Stewart King

9  ELECTIONS 2019 (Pages 33 - 34) Joanne Bolton, 
Stewart King

10  F40 Stewart King



    

(a) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Joanne Bolton, Clerk to the Forum
:01452 324197/e-mail: joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(b) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Will Members please sign the attendance list.

mailto:joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

1 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM 

 
Minutes of a meeting held on Thursday 15 November 2018 

in the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester. 
 
 

Present: 
 

 

Colin Belford - Secondary School Headteachers 

Matthew Bishop - Primary (Maintained) Governor 

Sara Byrne - Primary School Governors 

Graham Doswell - Primary School Governors 

Elisa Entwistle - Alternative Provision Schools 

Andrew Harris - Secondary Head Teachers 

Amanda Horniman - Early Years Providers 

Rachel Howie - Gloucester Diocese 

Dan Johnson - Primary School Headteachers 

Lisa Jones - Primary School Headteachers 

Liam Jordan - Clifton Diocese 

Gwyneth Keen - Early Years Providers 

Karen Lewis - Primary Head Teachers 

Will Morgan - Secondary School Headteachers 

Alexander Norman - Secondary School Governors 

Sue Padfield - Secondary School Governors 

Jacqui Phillips - Secondary Governors 

Steve Savory - Primary Head Teachers 

Clare Steel - Special School Headteacher 

Andrew Steward - Trade Unions 

Stuart Wilson - Secondary Head Teachers 

 
Substitutes: 

 
Elaine Marshall in place of Kate Hawkins, Special School 
Governors 

 
Observers: 

 
Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cabinet Member: Economy, Skills and Growth 
Sarah Murphy, District Secretary for Gloucestershire NEU 

 
 
Officers: Tim Browne, Director of Education 

Stewart King, Lead Commissioner: Education Strategy and 
Development 
Neil Egles, Finance Manager, Schools Strategy and Capital 
Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner 
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the 
Forum. 

 

Apologies: Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member for Children and Young 
People 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 
 

2  
 

Penny Chislett, Post-16 Education 
Kate Hawkins, Special School Governor 
Ian Marshall, Primary School Governors 
Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services 
 

 
33. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR  

 
There were no nominations received for the election of Vice-Chair.  The Chair 
emphasised the importance of having a Vice-Chair in place, and it was agreed that 
the election of Vice-Chair would be added to the agenda for the next meeting, for 
one more time, in a final attempt to appoint to the role. 
ACTION: Joanne Bolton 
 

34. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

35. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

35.1 No public questions had been received. 
 
35.2 At this juncture Jacqui Phillips, Secondary (Academy) Governor representative, 

asked for clarification on how the School Funding 2019/20 consultation document 
had been circulated, and to whom it had been circulated to.  In response Stewart 
King, Lead Commissioner for Education Strategy and Development, explained that 
the document had been circulated to all headteachers via email, and published in 
the ‘Heads Up’ and ‘What’s Up Gov’ bulletins.  Jacqui Phillips contended that 
Stroud High School had not received the document and she stressed the 
importance of ensuring that chairs of governing bodies at all schools received the 
document as well as headteachers.  It was agreed that officers would look into the 
process of how the document was circulated.  ACTION: Stewart King. 

  
 (Post Meeting Note:  Officers have received confirmation that the consultation 

document was circulated to headteachers via email on 1 November 2018, and that 
it was received by Stroud High School on 1 November 2018.  A link to the 
consultation document was also published in the ‘Heads Up’ bulletin on 1 
November and the ‘What’s Up Gov’ bulletin on 8 November 2018). 
 

36. MINUTES  
 

36.1 In considering the accuracy of the minutes of the previous meeting of 20 September 
2018, Steve Savory, Primary (Academy) Headteacher representative, made the 
point that in his view the minutes did not convey strongly enough, the strength of 
feeling amongst Forum members that all of the proposals set out in the School 
Funding 2019/20 and High Needs reports, to address the High Needs Block 
shortfall, were unpalatable. 

 

Page 2



 
Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 
 

3  
 

36.2 It was agreed that the following point he had made at the meeting would be 
included in the minutes of the previous meeting:   

 
 31.9  ‘A member emphasised the point that none of the proposals set out in the 

report for managing the High Needs Block shortfall, would support schools which 
had a disproportionally large number of pupils with High Needs in comparison to 
other schools’. 

 
36.3 Subject to the amendment outlined above, the minutes of the previous meeting of 

20 September 2018 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

37. SCHOOL FUNDING 2019/20 AND HIGH NEEDS  
 

37.1 Stewart King, Lead Commissioner for Education Strategy and Development, 
introduced the report.  He explained that a consultation document outlining the 
possible options for school funding in Gloucestershire in 2019/20 had been 
circulated to schools via email and published in the ‘Heads Up’ and ‘What’s Up Gov’ 
bulletins.  In addition, three consultation meetings had been held for schools and 
stakeholders in the week commencing 15 October 2018.  As at 14 November 2018, 
a total of 80 responses to the consultation document had been received.  The 
Forum noted the closing date for responses was 12pm on Tuesday 27 November 
2018.   Officers estimated around 90 people in total had attended the three 
consultation meetings. 

 
37.2 The Forum considered a summary of the responses which was tabled at the 

meeting.  (For Information: A copy of the summary has been uploaded on the 
Council’s website and is included in the signed minute book).  There was a degree 
of concern expressed amongst Forum members that the total of 80 responses 
received so far seemed quite low in comparison to the number of schools in 
Gloucestershire.  There was concern that the document may not have reached all 
schools via email.  

 
37.3 Members of the Forum questioned whether schools could make informed 

responses to the questions in the consultation document, as the average cash 
impact on schools of any transfer from the School Block had not been conveyed.  In 
response, officers explained that it was not possible to calculate the budget impact 
for each individual school at present.  He stressed that the cost impact would vary 
for each school. 

 
37.4 The Lead Commissioner for Education Strategy and Development explained that 

overspending in the High Needs Block was a national issue.  Gloucestershire 
discretionary spending with the High Needs block (which funds the protection 
arrangements for schools with exceptional numbers of high needs children) was the 
fourth highest out of the 150 local authorities.  63 authorities allocated no 
discretionary funding.  He explained that funding out of county placements for 
children with complex high needs was a major budget pressure.  He stressed that 
36 local authorities for 2018/19 budget setting, had sought approval from their 
School Forums to make a transfer from the Schools Block.   He anticipated a sharp 

Page 3



 
Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 
 

4  
 

increase in the number of Schools Forums making this request for 2019/20 budget 
setting. 

 
37.5 Forum members had a wide-ranging and challenging debate on the options set out 

in the report. One particular view expressed was that the options for addressing the 
High Needs Block shortfall did not support schools which had a disproportionately 
large number of pupils with high needs.  There were also concerns raised that the 
proposals would, if adopted, result in all schools becoming less able to provide the 
crucial support services for children with high needs. 

 
37.6 The overwhelming view expressed by Forum members was that the government 

was significantly underfunding high heeds, which was undermining the ability of 
schools and local authorities to meet the needs of children with SENDs. 

 
37.7 Clare Steel, Special School Headteacher representative, emphasised just how 

much pressure there was on special schools to accommodate the increasing 
number of children needing a special school place.  She explained that she was 
experiencing an increase in the number of enquiries from very concerned parents 
hoping to move children into a special school after learning of the proposed 
changes, but there were no places available   She emphasised the point that there 
were just not enough places available for children with complex needs.   

 
37.8 Members expressed how severely their school budgets had been already 

squeezed, and strongly emphasised that their schools could not absorb any further 
budget reductions without damaging educational consequences. Some members 
felt strongly that by accepting the recommendations in the report then they would 
be accepting underfunding, which left them with no choice but to reject the 
proposals.  

 
37.9 The general consensus view was that greater political weight should be given 

urgently to recognise the funding for high needs had become an issue of national 
concern.  In particular, the Forum should lobby government for an improved 
settlement for Gloucestershire as a whole to contain the deficit in the High Needs 
Block, which was being caused by an unprecedented increase in demand, in 
additional to a general improvement in funding through accelerating the rate of 
implementation of the National Funding Formula.  

 
37.10 Officers explained that allowing the High Needs Block to go into deficit was not a 

viable option for the local authority.  The DfE was introducing a new reporting 
regime; this included a requirement that deficits were repaid within three years. 

 
37.11 Lynden Stowe, Cabinet Member: Economy, Skills and Growth, informed the Forum 

that a deficit budget could not be set as the shortfall in high needs funding was a 
trend rather than a blip. The high needs shortfall would only accelerate without 
action being taken now.  He recognised the difficulty Forum members faced, but 
emphasised that he hoped they could take a pragmatic view, and provide a steer on 
the options set out in the report. 

 

Page 4



 
Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 
 

5  
 

37.12 The Forum considered recommendations 2, 3, and 4 as set out in the report.  The 
Forum:   

 
37.12.1Approved the proposed change in the support arrangements for schools with 

exceptional numbers of EHCPs from ‘1 in 75’ policy to ‘1 in 40’.  It was noted that 
this change would reduce costs falling to the High Needs Block by £1.9M. 

 
37.12.2 Did not support any transfer from the Schools Block to the High Needs Block.   
 
37.12.3 Considered how the high needs shortfall could be addressed, including discussing 

the proposal to reduce top-ups by approximately 12%.  The Forum however, 
rejected the proposal to reduce top-ups. Officers were, instead, asked to explore 
reducing the lump sum figure to all schools to calculate whether this option was 
viable to address the High Needs Block shortfall.    

 ACTION: Stewart King/Neil Egles. 
 
37.13 Officers informed the Forum that they would now consult with the Council’s Cabinet 

members on how to deal with the High Needs Block shortfall.  The consultation 
would examine a reduction in top-ups, and whether to make a disapplication 
request to the Secretary of State for Education to make a transfer from the Schools 
Block.  The Lead Commissioner for Education Strategy and Development 
confirmed that the deadline for making a submission to the Secretary of State was 
30 November 2018.   

 
37.14 In considering the School Funding Formula the Forum agreed a top-slice from the 

Schools Block for growth in 2019/20 of £1.054M. 
 
37.15 The Forum considered the proposals for de-delegations.  Andrew Steward, 

Teaching Union representative, introduced his colleague Sarah Murphy, who he 
explained would be taking over from him as the Forum’s Union representative, with 
immediate effect.  Ms Murphy presented the report on Local Authority Teaching 
Union Facilities 2018.  She emphasised the importance of the de-delegation 
provision for union facilities, explaining that the funding allowed teaching unions to 
provide Gloucestershire schools access to effective statutory and collective 
consultation, bargaining and individual representation from trained and accredited 
local teaching union officials.  School leaders and managers also had access to a 
valuable resource in the resolution of workplace issues and disputes, often before 
the need to escalate to a formal stage.  The Forum noted the report.   

 
37.16 The Forum considered the proposals for de-delegations. The Forum’s maintained 

schools’ representatives present at the meeting (by sector) agreed de-delegation at 
the per pupil rates shown in the report for: 

 
 In-year increases in pupil numbers – primary 

Targeted intervention – primary 
 Union facilities – primary 
 Local authorities’ duties (primary and secondary). 
 

Page 5



 
Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 
 

6  
 

37.17 The Forum agreed the allocation shown in the report for the Central Schools 
Services Block. 

 
37.18 The Forum noted that it would make its final recommendations on the funding 

formula at its meeting on 10 January 2019, ahead of the submission of the final 
formula to the DfE on 21 January 2019. 
 

38. GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOL PLACES STRATEGY 2018-2023  
 

38.1 Sandra Donaldson, Place Planning Manager, presented the report outlining the 
draft strategy and the implementation plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2023.   

 
38.2 The Forum noted that the strategy set out the demographic trends in 

Gloucestershire, including a summary of major new house building, details of 
current school and post-16 provision, an analysis of the latest pupil projections, 
emerging proposals and guiding policies and principles upon which decisions would 
be informed.  The Place Planning Manager explained that the documented 
information was a tool to support dialog with schools and would inform the capital 
programme.  

 
38.3 Members were informed that comments were invited on the draft strategy up until 

the deadline of 21 November 2018. 
 
38.4 The Forum noted that the Council’s Cabinet would receive a report on the proposed 

implementation plan in December 2018.   
 
38.5 The Forum noted the report. 

 
39. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NATIONAL PAY AWARD AND REVISED 

NATIONAL PAY SPINE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT STAFF  
 

39.1 In accordance with paragraph 3.6 of the Constitution the Chair agreed that this item 
would be considered by the Forum in private. The press and public were therefore 
excluded. 

 
39.2 Colin Parkin, Assistant Head of Human Resources, provided a verbal update on the 

National Pay Award and Revised National Pay Spine for Local Government Staff.   
 
39.3 The Forum was informed that the first year of the national agreement was already 

in place, effective from 1st April 2018, with a pay increase of 2% for most 
employees.  The second year of the pay award was effective from 1st April 2019 
and involved more fundamental changes to the National Pay Spine, and a review of 
the grading structure.  The Forum was informed of how the changes would affect 
schools; the Forum was assured that the proposals would not require job re-
evaluation.   

 
39.4 The Forum noted that Unions were currently being consulted, and schools would 

receive information on the changes before the Christmas break.     

Page 6



 
Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 
 

7  
 

 
40. F40  

 
40.1 Stewart King. Lead Commissioner for Education Strategy and Development 

informed members that the f40 had now published its outline campaign strategy 
and this would be circulated to Forum members.   

 ACTION: Stewart King. 
 
40.2 He notified members that there was now a vacancy on the f40 Executive 

Committee for a Gloucestershire representative, and he was looking for a volunteer.  
No members put themselves forward on this occasion.   A representative would be 
sought. 
ACTION: Joanne Bolton/Stewart King 
 
 

 
Chair 

 
Meeting concluded at 4.55 pm 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Schools Forum Meeting on 15 November 2018 
 

Action Sheet 
 
TOPIC 
 
 

 
ACTION 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

 
OUTCOME 
 

1. Election of Vice-Chair To add as an item on the agenda for the meeting 10 
January 2019. 

Joanne Bolton  
 

Completed. 

2.  School Funding 2019/20 
Consultation Document  

Following a question from a member of the Forum, 
officers to look into the process of how the document 
was circulated.  
 
Officers to look at whether it would be possible to 
make a reduction to the lump sum figure to all 
schools to help fund the high needs shortfall.  
 

Stewart King 
 
 
 
Stewart King/Neil 
Egles. 

Completed.  Post meeting 
note included in the minutes. 
 
 
Completed. Email sent to 
Forum members on 21 
November 2018, to explain 
that this would not be 
possible with a Minimum 
Funding Guarantee set at 0% 
due to the way the ESFA’s 
MFG formula works. 
 

3. F40 ing.  The f40 outline campaign strategy to be circulated to 
Forum members.   

  
40.2 A Gloucestershire representative to be sought for the 

f40 Executive Committee. 
 

Stewart King 
 
 
Joanne Bolton 

Completed.  Email sent on 3 
January 2019. 
 
Completed.  Forum member 
Will Morgan has volunteered.  

 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
 

Gloucestershire County Council  Budget Consultation 
2019/20  

 

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

10th January 2019 

Type of Decision For information and comment as part of the consultation 

Background 
Documents 

Council Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2017/18 to 
2019/20. 
 
Council Report : 14th February 2018 
 
Cabinet Report: 19th December 2018: MTFS 2019/20 to 2021/22. Link for 
full report – Item 6 on the Agenda 
 

Gloucestershire County Council MTFS 2019/20 
 

Author Sue Hall, Finance Business Partner   

Extracts of report presented by: 
Jo Walker: Strategic Finance Director 
Paul Blacker: Head of Financial Management 

 

Purpose of Report 
 

 

To inform the Schools Forum of the budget strategy and draft details for 
2019/20 and the MTFS covering the period 2019/20 to 2021/22. 
 

Key 
Recommendations 

 

That the report is noted and that any comments are fed back through the 
Council’s consultation process by 21st January 2019. 

Resource 
Implications 

 

The report is concerned with the Council’s overall budget and the specific 
financial implications for Children and Families. 
 

 
Summary of Information 

The attached report is the summary MTFS position presented to Cabinet on the 19th December 

2018 for the whole Council.  The link to the detailed report is included above but a number of 

specific annexes relating to the overall budget and specifically to Children and Families are 

attached for information. These include:- 

 Annex 3: Budget Summary by Service Area  for the Council 

 Annex 2: Budget movements in services for Children and Families 

 

In summary it is proposed that Children and Families achieve cost reductions of £2.25 million 

and receive cost increases of £13.15 million, a net increase in budget of £10.9 million. See 

annex for details. The Council’s financial planning cycle has recognised the pressure on the 

children’s and families budget during 2018/19 (forecast overspend of £9.83 million before the 

offset of the business rates retention income) and this is reflected in the investment being 

made. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g8903/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2019-Dec-2018%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


 

2 
 

Annex 3 
Summary of the overall budget for the Council 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Medium Term Financial Strategy – 2019/20 Budget – Overall Summary

2018/19 

Agreed 

MTFS 

Budget

Transfer of 

2018/19 One 

Off Budget 

Support to 

T&C for 

MTFS 

Presentation 

Purposes

Agreed 

2018/19 

Budget 

adjustments *

2018/19 

Revised 

MTFS 

Base 

Budget

Pay 

Inflation 

Costs

Cost 

Increases

Cost 

Reductions

Proposed 

2019/20 

Budget

Cash 

Increase / 

Decrease 

Percentage 

Increase / 

Decrease

Budget Area £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Programme Budget Areas

Adults   133,172                         - 1,384   134,556     1,180        11,287 -10,498 136,525            1,969 1.5%

Vulnerable Children     73,696 -1,123 848     73,421        917        11,632 -1,700       84,270          10,849 14.8%

Other Children Services     29,278                         - -10,599     18,679        391              215 -550       18,735                 56 0.3%

Communities and Infrastructure     80,426 -530 -848     79,048     1,088           3,943 -990       83,089            4,041 5.1%

Support Services     27,917                         - 47     27,964        749           3,533 -1,467       30,779            2,815 10.1%

Technical and Cross Cutting 44,721    1,703 -513     45,911             3              732 -4,669 41,977      -3,934 -8.6%

Prevention & Wellbeing 24,271    -50 9,681     33,902          20              100 -1,041 32,981      -921 -2.7%

Total Budget 413,481                         -                         - 413,481 4,348 31,442 -20,915 428,356 14,875 3.6%

* Includes the budget  transfer of £9.485 million for Supporting People and Prevention Hub Services from Other Children Services to 

Prevention & Wellbeing

Page 12



 

3 
 

  Annex 2 
Detail of Children and Families budget movements 

 

 
 

2019/20 Children and Families Budget - Vulnerable Children

Cost 

Increases

Cost 

Reductions

£000 £000 £000

Budget Changes:

Starting Budget (2018/19 Revised Budget) 73,421

Cost Increases

Pay Inflation 917

External Placement Budget - to provide for the increased cost and number of 

placements

4,200

Child Protection Conference Chairs - additional staffing to meet demand and 

statutory standards

305

Inflation uplift for Fostering, Adoption, Special Guardianship orders & Child 

Arrangement Allowances

213

Special Guardianship Orders - Increased Numbers 181

In House Fostering Service - additional staff and allowances to increase 

placement capacity

526

Kinship Foster Carers - payment of foster carer fee and additional staff to support 

the increased activity in the assessment team

507

Over recruitment of newly qualified social workers by 40 FTE's above 

establishment

1,349

Social work pay and allowances - includes retention, welcome and  relocation 

expenses

1,047

Additional staff for the Front Door, social work teams and administrative support 813

Family Group Conferencing - additional staff to extend the service on a phased 

basis

181

Contact Centre - additional staff to provide capacity to meet contact 

arrangements for children in care

80

Additional one-off investment to mitigate against demand for external placements 

funded from the Rates Retention Reserve

2,000

Additional one-off funding to support the implementation of the Ofsted 

Improvement Plan, from the Rates Retention Reserve

230

Cost Reductions

Reduction in cost of external placements following the review by High Cost Panel -1,700

TOTAL NET CHANGE 12,549 -1,700 10,849

Children & Families - Vulnerable Children Budget 2019/20 84,270

* This excludes additional ringfenced grant funding as follows:-

Additional funding for Social Care £4.322 million announced by Government 

November 2018, to be allocated equally between Adult Care and Vulnerable 

Children.

Page 13



 

4 
 

 

 
 

2019/20 Children and Families Budget - Other Services

Cost 

Increases

Cost 

Reductions
£000 £000 £000

Starting Budget (2018/19 Revised Budget) 18,679

Budget Changes:

Cost Increases

Pay Inflation 391

Home to School Transport 146

To provide for contractual prices inflation.

Staff to support increase in Education, Health & Care Plans 69

Additional staff to provide capacity to support and review the increased number of 

EHC plans

Cost Reductions

Pensions

Realigned budget based on current estimate of pensioner numbers -150

Home to School Transport

Realign bespoke travel arrangements through Independent Travel training, 

increased vehicle capacity to special schools and the use of individual Personal 

Travel Allowances.

-150

Education Services -250

Align intervention and support capacity with demand

TOTAL NET CHANGE 606 -550 56

Children & Families - Other Services Budget 2019/20 18,735

* This budget excludes the ringfenced Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).

Page 14



 

 

Dedicated Schools Grant 2019/20  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

10th January 2019 

Type of Decision For decision 

Background 
Documents 

Schools Forum reports on school funding 20th September 2018 and 
15th November 2018 

Secretary of State’s announcement on additional funding for SEND 
link. Dedicated Schools Grant 2019/20  link  

Author Stewart King, lead commissioner for education strategy and 
development 

Neil Egles, finance manager – schools strategy and capital 

Purpose of Report To report on the implications of the announcements on the 

Dedicated Schools Grant for 2019/20 and to make 

recommendations on the final funding formula for mainstream 

schools 

Key 
Recommendations 

The  Forum is asked to: 

1. note the Dedicated Schools Grant settlement for 2019/20 
and the additional funding for SEND. 

2. note the latest trends on high needs spending 

3. agree to carry forward any DSG deficit following the 
decision to not transfer funds from the schools block to 
the high needs block and resulting from the increase in 
high needs costs  

4. agree to hold a seminar on high needs on a date to be 
agreed 

5. recommend the council to agree the school funding 
formula for 2019/20 as set out in Annex C. 

6. Early years: it is recommended that the Forum 

a. Agrees to the hourly rates for 2, 3 and 4 year olds to 

remain at the same level as 2018/19 

b. Agrees to the quality supplement being de-

delegated to the Local Authority to enable all early 

providers to have access to advice and information 

on quality standards 

c. Agrees to set the target for central costs at the 

maximum level. 

Resource 
Implications 

The 2019/20 DSG announced on 17th December 2018 totals 
£451.1m. This represents an increase in the total DSG of £10.3m 
(2.3%) from 2018/19 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-funding-to-support-children-with-special-educational-needs?utm_source=66f72beb-fb23-4082-bf88-447959321037&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=daily
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/dedicated-schools-grant-dsg-2019-to-2020


1 Introduction 

  

This paper updates the Forum on the Dedicated Schools Grant for 2019/20.  The 

Forum will now need to make recommendations on the funding formula for 

mainstream schools and early years providers in the light of the settlement and the 

latest position on high needs. 

 

2 Dedicated Schools Grant 

2.1 Summary 

The DfE announced the DSG for 2019/20 on the 17th December 2018 and confirmed 
there will still be 4 separate allocation blocks within it for Schools, Central School 
Services, High Needs and Early Years. 

The 2019/20 position for Gloucestershire is: 

 
 

This represents an increase of £10.3m (2.3%) from the current 2018/19 DSG and 

includes the additional funding for high needs that was announced at the same time. 

  

Where a specific unit of funding has been used within a block formula these are 

shown for all LAs in Annex A, along with where that LA is ranked nationally. It should 

be noted however that these funding units are only part of the funding a LA receives 

as there are other historic (non unit) based elements that cannot be ranked. 

 

Gloucestershire’s position out of 149 authorities is also shown below: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



The increase in the schools block can be broken down further as follows: 

 
 

2.2 Growth fund 

 

As explained at the November 2018 Schools Forum meeting, in 2019/20 the DfE has 

introduced a new method for funding the growth element within the schools block. 

This is no longer based on planned growth, but instead allocated on a lagged basis 

based on positive growth between census dates using middle super output areas.  

 

The 2019/20 growth allocation for Gloucestershire has been calculated using the 

new method as follows: 

 
 

The DfE have said their growth allocation should not be used to decide the growth 

top-slice from the schools block or funding of new and growing schools, but instead 

they recommend LAs and schools should continue to determine their own planned 

growth needed for the year and base their funding allocations on that. 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



Gloucestershire’s expected requirement for growth costs in 2019/20 is £1.6m as 

shown below: 

 
 

This means the £1.0m balance not needed for growth can be used as part of the 

2019/20 delegated funding formula to schools. 

 

3 Schools 

 

3.1 The overall funding position for schools and high needs - recap 

 

At its September meeting the Forum considered the position on schools and high 

needs funding but opted not to make recommendations on the funding formula for 

2019/20 at that stage. 

 

The council issued a consultation paper to schools at the end of October setting out 

proposals to change the protection arrangements for schools with exceptional 

numbers of high needs pupils together with a range of options for transferring funding 

from the Schools Block to High Needs. 

 

At its November meeting the Forum: 

 agreed the change in the protection arrangements from 1 in 75 to 1 in 40  

 did not agree any transfer to high needs 

 did not feel able to offer advice on how to address the high needs funding 

problem 

 

The consultation concluded on 27th November and the results were circulated to 

Forum members. 

 

In the light of the financial position and the outcome of the consultation the council 

then submitted an appeal to the Secretary of State for a 0.25% transfer from the 

Schools Block to High Needs. 

 

3.2 High Needs 

 

On 16th December the Secretary of State announced some additional funding for 

high needs totalling £350m: £100m capital and £250m revenue.  Gloucestershire will 

receive an additional £1.35m revenue funding in 2018/19 and the same amount 

again in 2019/20.  After consultation with Cabinet members the appeal to the 

Secretary of State was withdrawn. 

Page 18



 

  

However the pressure on the high needs budget remains and the forecast position 

for 2018/19 has worsened further - reflecting the national picture.   The forecast now 

shows an overspend, allowing for the £1.35m addition announced on 16th December, 

of £4.7m, reduced to £2.7m once the High Needs carry forward reserve has been 

applied.  Please note that the forecast includes additional cash advances to the 

Alternative Provision schools on the basis that the deficits at the AP schools are 

unrecoverable and will need to be written off at some point.  A full report will be 

presented to the next Forum meeting.  

 

The updated statement is shown at Annex B.  The key concerns other than AP 

continue to be: 

 placements at independent special schools 

 significant rise in the number of EHCPs and the associated cost of 

mainstream top-up payments , particularly primary 

 special school places 

 

The summary position on high needs now is: 

 

 2018/19 

£m 

2019/20 

£m 

Balance b/fwd -2.0 2.7 

High Needs block allocation -58.9 -60.0 

Projected spending 63.6 61.0 

Balance c/fwd (deficit) 2.7 3.7 

 

NB spending for 2019/20 allows for the change to 1 in 40 and efficiency savings of 

£0.4m but with spending otherwise unchanged from 2018/19 i.e. this is a likely best 

case scenario. 

 

The additional £2.7m high needs funding eases the deficit to a degree but recovering 

the position remains heavily dependent on: 

 a favourable Spending Review settlement for 2020/21 onwards 

and 

 finding strategic solutions locally 

 

Forum members may find it helpful to refer again to the June to September 

consultation on high needs and subsequent report circulated on 11th December.  It is 

also suggested that, given the gravity of the situation, that the Forum brings forward 

the March meeting to February, to consider the high needs budget issues in greater 

depth. 

 

Recommendations 

 

The  Forum is asked to: 

Page 19



1. note the Dedicated Schools Grant settlement for 2019/20 and the 
additional funding for SEND. 

2. note the latest trends on high needs spending 

3. agree to carry forward any DSG deficit following the decision to not 
transfer funds from the schools block to the high needs block and 
resulting from the increase in high needs costs  

4. agree to hold a seminar on high needs on a date to be agreed 
 

 

3.3 School Funding Formula 

 

In line with previous Schools Forum discussions the 2019/20 delegated formula has 

based on the following: 

 Allocation of all the schools Block funding remaining after the deduction for the 

growth fund. 

 Using all the DfE’s updated data provided on the 17th December 2018 e.g. 

October 2018 pupil census and other census data. 

 Including the national reduction the DfE have made to the primary prior 

attainment allocation due to the increase in pupils counted as a result of the 

new count method. 

 Applying an MFG of 0%. 

 Using the formulas from the National Funding Formula (NFF) where allowed 

within the ESFA’s Authority Proforma Tool (APT). This includes the NFF 1% 

funding floor and alternative gains CAP methods that were not available in 

2018/19. 

 

A percentage reduction of 0.46% has then been necessary in order to avoid a £0.8m 

overspend of the schools block. the reduction has been applied to all the NFF factors 

including the minimum funding levels of £4,800 secondary, £3,500 primary; the lump 

sum, sparsity maximum allocations; split site allocations; the 3% CAP; and all pupil 

led factors, in order to balance back to the funding available.  

 

The main reasons a percentage reduction has been needed is because: 

 

 The APT (that the LA has to use when submitting school funding formulas) has 

not previously allowed the exact NFF formulas to be replicated. 

 The APT uses an MFG that is not part of the NFF so some previous funding 

differences are now being protected by the funding floor protection and MFGs 

in 2019/20. 

 

This means the funding shortfall cannot be taken from those protected schools and 

those who are not protected are therefore having to bear more of the £0.8m shortfall 

via the 0.46% reduction. 

 

If changes in pupil numbers for additional factors such as deprivation, prior 

attainment and EAL are at a higher percentage increase than the NOR increase this 

Page 20



can also result in a shortfall in the funding needed or additional MFG protections for 

schools. 

 

A summary of the 2019/20 funding formula proposed for submission to the ESFA is 

shown under Annex C. 

 

The number of schools that receive uplifts for MFG or MFL, or have capping 

reductions through that formula are shown below, along with the 2018/19 position for 

comparison:  

 
 

Further details summarising key changes between 2018/19 and 2019/20 are also 

shown at Annex D  

 

The 2019/20 completed APT needs to be submitted to the ESFA by 21st January 

2019. It is then subject to approval by the ESFA before 2019/20 budgets are notified 

to individual schools by 28th February 2019. 

 

Recommendation 5 

The Forum is asked to recommend the council to agree the school funding 

formula for 2019/20 as set out in Annex C. 

 

4 Early Years  

 

The initial total for the Early Years block for 2019/20 is £32.25 million and includes 

the Early Years pupil premium and the disability access fund. The total will be 

updated following the January 2019 and 2020 census. The £0.1 million increase in 

the funding is due to a very small rise in the disability access fund. 

 

It is recommended that the hourly rates for 2, 3 and 4 year olds remain the same as 

2018/19 at 

 2 year olds a hourly rate of £4.91 

 3 and 4 year olds hourly rate of £3.91 plus an allowance for deprivation and 

quality. 

It is recommended that the £0.02 per hour quality supplement continues to be 

de-delegated to the Local Authority to enable providers to have access to relevant 

advice and information on quality. 

 

The Early Years regulations limited the cost of central services to 5% from 2018/19. 

It is recommended that the Forum agree to the budget for central costs being set at 

the maximum level (circa £1.6m). This will continue to fund an element of children 

and family centres, Early Years quality team and supporting overheads. 

Page 21



 

Early years providers have faced cost pressures from the impact of increases in 

teachers pay and pensions, the national living wage and support staff pay.  It may be 

helpful for the Early Years representatives on the Forum to add some commentary at 

the meeting on the impact of these cost pressures. 

 

Recommendation 6: That the Forum 

 Agrees to the hourly rates for 2, 3 and 4 year olds to remain at the same 

level as 2018/19 

 Agrees to the quality supplement being de-delegated to the Local 

Authority to enable all early providers to have access to advice and 

information on quality standards 

 Agrees to set the target for central costs at the maximum level 

 

 

5 Central School Services Block (CSSB) 

 

The CSSB for 2019/20 is £2.559m and is based on an average unit of funding of 

£31.94 reduced from £32.41 (-1.5% reduction) with 90% based on per pupil funding 

and 10% on a deprivation factor. The unit of funding is then multiplied by the number 

of mainstream pupil numbers on the October 2018 census, which for Gloucestershire 

was 80,115 pupils. Due to the increase in pupil numbers the net decrease in 2019/20 

is only £9,279. 

 

These funds cover the following costs:-  

 

Central School Services Block £M 

Copyright licences 0.483 

Schools Forum 0.127 

Admissions Coordination 0.750 

Centrally Retained Duties 1.199 

TOTAL 2.559 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

2019/20 DSG Units of Funding by LA and Ranking out of 149               Annex A 

 

 

Page 23



 

Annex A 

Continued

 

 
 

 

 

Page 24



Annex B 

 

P
age 25



Annex C 

P
age 26



 

Annex C Continued 

 
 

 

P
age 27



Summary of changes between 2018/19 and 2019/20.                                Annex D 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 28



 
1. The attached workplan provides a guide for members of the items scheduled to be 

considered by the Forum at the meetings throughout 2019. 
 

2. The key priorities for the Schools Forum in 2019 are: 
 

2.1 Mainstream funding 
 To agree an approach to school funding for 2020/21 in the light of the impact on 

pupils and schools of the current allocation of funding.  To make 
representations to government on education funding, as an individual Forum or 
as part of wider campaign. 
 

2.2 High needs 
 To review the strategic approach to managing spending on high needs, 

particularly in the light of the outcome of the summer 2018 consultation. 
 To monitor spending and data trends. 
 

2.3 Early years 
 To review the childcare market and its impact on children, parents and the 
 school system. 
 To agree any changes to the early years funding model for 2019/20. 

 
2.4 Role and functions of the Forum 

To reassess the role and impact of the Forum in the light of its statutory 
responsibilities, current priorities in school funding and any developments in 
government guidance. 

 
3. The Forum is asked to note the workplan for 2019.  

 

Gloucestershire Schools Forum – Workplan 2019  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

10 January 2019 

Type of Decision For information 

Background 
Documents 

 None 

Author Stewart King – Lead Commissioner for Education Strategy and 
Development 

Purpose of Report To inform members of the items requiring the Forum’s input in 2019. 

Key 
Recommendations 

To note the Schools Forum Workplan 2019 

Resource 
Implications 

None. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



Schools Forum Workplan 2019 
 

Meeting date Item Purpose Content/Issue Lead officer 

Thursday 10 January 
 

 

Gloucestershire 
County Council 
Budget 
Consultation 
2019/20 
 
Funding 
Formula  
2019/20 
 
 
Early Years 
Funding 
 
High Needs 
 
 
F40 
 
 
Schools Forum 
Workplan 
 
Elections 2019 
 

Information 
 
 
 
 
 
Decision 
 
 
 
 
Decision 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Decision 
 
 
Information 
 

Consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
Decisions on the local funding formula for 
mainstream funding.  Commentary on funding 
announcements for 2019/20. 
 
 
Agree the funding formula for 2019/20. 
 
 
Update on high needs. 
 
 
Update only – may be oral. 
 
 
Workplan for 2019. 
 
 
Plans for Schools Forum Elections 2019. 
 

Suzanne Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
Stewart King/Neil 
Egles 
 
 
 
Stewart King 
 
 
Stewart King 
 
 
Stewart King 
 
 
 
 
Stewart King/ 
Joanne Bolton 
 

February (date to be 
confirmed) 

High Needs Seminar Stewart King 

P
age 30



 

Thursday 09 May 
 

Dedicated 
Schools Grant 
2018/19 
 
High Needs 
 
 
Capital  
 
 
Annual Review 
of the 
Constitution 
 
 
F40 

Decision 
 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Decision 
 
 
 
 
Information  

Update on high needs and early years block. 
 
 
 
To receive an update on high needs. 
 
 
To Review the Capital Programme for 2020/21 
and beyond. 
 
To seek the Forum’s views on the 
constitution/membership. 
 
 
 
Update – may be oral. 

Lead 
Commission for 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 
 
 
Gareth Vine 
 
 
Lead 
Commissioner for 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 

Thursday 20 June Outturn and 
school balances 
2018/19 
 
High Needs 
 
 
F40 
 
 
Meeting dates 
2019 

Information 
 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information  
 

Spending against DSG & DSG balances. 
 
 
 
To receive an update on high needs.   
 
 
Update only – may be oral. 
 
 
To note meeting dates in 2019. 

Suzanne Hall/Neil 
Egles 
 
 
Lead 
Commissioner for 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 
 
Joanne Bolton 

P
age 31



Thursday 19 
September 

School Funding 
2020/21 
 
High Needs 
 
 
 
F40 
 
 

Decision 
 
 
Information 
 
 
 
Information 

 
 
 
To consider the formula for 2020/21, de-
delegations etc. 
 
 
Update  – may be oral. 

Lead 
Commissioner for 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 
 
 
 

Thursday 14 November School funding 
2020/21 
 
 
High Needs 
 
 
 
F40 

Decision 
 
 
 
Information 
 
 
 
Information 

To consider the outcome of wider consultation 
with schools and to make recommendations to 
the council on the funding formula 
 
To receive an update on high needs. 
 
 
 
Update – may be oral. 

Lead 
Commission for 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development/ 
Suzanne Hall/ 
Neil Egles 
 
Lead 
Commissioner for 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 
 

 
 

P
age 32



 
1. Election of Schools/Academy members 

 
It is now time for the Schools Forum biennial elections.  Half of the Schools Forum 
school membership’s term of office ends on 31 March 2019; the seats up for election 
are outlined in the table below.   
 
Please note that  Andrew Harris, Secondary Academy Headteacher, will be stepping 
down from the Forum as from 31 March 2019, and therefore his seat has been 
included in this election round.  One of the three Secondary (Academy) Headteacher 
seats will therefore have a term of office of 2 years, instead of the usual 4 year term.  
 
 
 

Category Number of Seats Status Current Forum Member 

Special School 
Headteacher  

1  Clare Steel 
Alderman Knight School 

Primary School 
Headteacher 
 

2 Maintained Lisa Jones 
Innsworth Infant/Junior 
School 

Maintained Karen Lewis 
Grangefield Primary 

Primary School 
Governor 

2 Maintained Graham Doswell 
Swell and Longborough 
Primary 

Academy Ian Marshall 
Highnam C of E Primary 

Secondary 
School 

3 Academy Will Morgan 
The Cotswold School 

Gloucestershire Schools Forum – Elections 2019  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

10 January 2019 

Type of Decision For information 

Background 
Documents 

 None 

Author Joanne Bolton – Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the 
Forum  

Purpose of Report To inform members of the plans for the Schools Forum elections 

2019 

Key 
Recommendations 

To note the plans for the Schools Forum elections 2019 

Resource 
Implications 

None 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



Headteacher Academy Stuart Wilson 
Marling School 

Academy  Andrew Harris 
Katharine Lady Berkeley’s 
School 

Secondary 
School Governor 

2 Academy Sue Padfield 
All Saints’ Academy 

Maintained Vacant 

 The new term of office for all seats is 4 years (1 April 2019 to 31 March 2023), 
this is with the exception of one of the Secondary (Academy) Headteacher 
seats which will have a term of office of 2 years (1 April 2019 - 31 March 2021). 

 
 

The Gloucestershire Association of Special School Headteachers will be undertaking 
its own election process for the Special School Headteacher seat.  Nominations for 
the other seats will be sought from the relevant parties from Friday 11 January 2019.  
The deadline for nomination forms to be returned to the clerk is 5pm on Friday 8 
February 2019.  A notice of the election will be published in the Heads Up and What’s 
up Gov bulletins.     
 
Please note that a member of the Forum may seek election for another term. 
 
2. Election Arrangements 

 
If there are only sufficient nominations to fill the vacant seat(s) in any category, the 
member in that category will be elected unopposed.  
 
If an election is required, ballot papers will be issued during the week commencing 11 
February 2019, to the electors, to be returned by 5 pm on Wednesday 20 March 2019. 
The election count will take place on Thursday 21 March 2019. 
 
The nomination round results and the results of any elections will be published on the 
Schools Forum webpage and in the What’s Up Gov and Heads Up bulletins. 

 
Further information on the election process can be found on the Gloucestershire 
Schools Forum webpage: - LINK 

 
 

 
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the Forum 

Page 34

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/schoolsnet/school-office/finance/schools-forum/

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Action sheet 15 November  2018

	6 Gloucestershire County Council Budget Consultation 2019
	7 Dedicated Schools Grant 2019/20
	8 Schools Forum Workplan 2019
	9 Elections 2019

